TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH
SELECTMEN’S PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2009

6:45PM: Treasurer Kay Hankin
7:00PM: Solid Waste & Recycling Committee
7:15PM: Fire Dept. Captains Ed Warren and Matidaal

ATTENDING: Selectmen Matthew B. Dworman, Richard S. Poeladbavid R. Pendell, Jr.

OTHERS ATTENDING: Kay Hankin, Duncan MaclLeod, Ed Warren, Matt Gall&R. Scott Urwick.

Mr. Poelaert called this Selectmen’s Public Meetmgrder at 6:30PM, noting Chairman Dworman iglstu
in traffic, and will arrive as soon as possible.

MINUTES: The Board reviewed the Selectmen’s Public & Nobileumeeting minutes dated 10/26/09.
Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve and sign the public meeting minutesnasnded. Mr. Poelaert
seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve and sign the non-public meeting minateamended. Mr. Poelaert
seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

REGISTER: The Board reviewed the check register. Mr. Ped@ITIONED to approve and sign the
check register dated 10/28/09 — 11/02/09 in theuarinof $547,402.62. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motion
carried 2-0.

EXEMPTION REPORT: The Board reviewed the exemption report for 2G¥FRA. Mr. Pendell
MOTIONED to approve and sign the report as presented. d&laRrt seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

ASSESSMENT SHEETS:The Board reviewed the equalization assessmeatstiagets. Mr. Pendell
MOTIONED to approve and sign the certificate as require@BA. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motion carried
2-0.

EBC: The Board reviewed the EB & C Program for 1/1 /312010, including the wages. Mr. Pendell
MOTIONED to approve and sign the 2010 EB & C and wagesmautie holidays in 2010. Mr. Poelaert
seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

REVALUATION: The Board acknowledged the last payment due taaAfatr the revaluation, and
received a request to approve the withdrawal d353tfrom the capital reserve fund.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve the request for the Trustee of thetTFuads to withdraw $4,350 from
the revaluation capital reserve fund to cover & of the final payment for the 2009 revaluatimaling
$43,500. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

TOWN REPORT: The Board acknowledged receipt of a quote fromtiihiPress to produce the Town
Report, noting an increase of approximately $30tnftast year. Mr. PendeMOTIONED to approve
Whittier Press as the publisher of the Town Repdrt.Poelaert seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

Mr. Pendell noted at the recently held East Kings$toe Association meeting, they said they had not
received a letter from the Board of Selectmen rstijjog the association deliver the Town Report. Atien.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes November 9, 2009 — 20091109selpubmin 1



Asst. responded the letter was mailed about a megphdirectly to Julie Urwick, President of the
Association. Mr. Pendell asked that the letterésenailed to Julie Urwick and to Austin Carter. NB&allant
agreed to do so, and also offered to provide cagfiéise letter to Mr. Pendell and Mr. Ed Warren.

BUDGET: The Board acknowledged receipt of the expenditasesf 10/31/09, reflecting 74% expended.

TAX RATE: DRA has scheduled a date and time to set the Tt&x’rate. Chairman Dworman will
attend with the Adm. Asst.

Upon final approval of the tax rate from DRA, tharvant will be produced and the Board of Selectmiin
sign the warrant. The TC/TC will then produce theand billing for property taxes for 2009, with thiés
due 30 days later. The rate is being set late @baryear, because the school did not have al the
paperwork into DRA for the 9/1 deadline. The TC/h&s expressed she would like to get the bills sut a
soon as possible for cash flow purposes.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to authorize the Board members to sign the waupah completion, so the
Town Clerk/Tax Collector can issue the bills witle tpayment due 30 days later. Mr. Poelaert seconded
Motion carried 2-0.

TREASURER: Treasurer Kay Hankin met with the Board at 6:45BRMjiscuss the Town’s investment
policy. (It is an annual requirement by state $&gtand the auditors review it).

Ms. Hankin stated the auditors review it every yead noted there have been no changes to thetnmeets
policy. She is here tonight to fulfill the requirent.

The Board members thanked her for coming in, aedefhthe meeting.

FIRE DEPT: Captains Ed Warren and Matt Gallant met with tlbaf8 to discuss the fire department while
the Fire Chief is out on leave.

Mr. Warren provided a letter to the Board listitgms for discussion at tonight's meeting.
Mr. Warren also provided the wording for a warrarticle to acquire a tanker written two differerays.
The Board agreed to the warrant article writtenafdease purchase for five years, along with aelaeposit

to be included on the warrant.

Mr. Warren explained they would like a letter onafoletterhead authorizing himself and Capt. Galtant
act on behalf of the Fire Chief while he is out.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to issue a letter stating Captains Matt Gallawt Bd Warren are authorized to
act on behalf of the Fire Chief in his absencel dutiher notice. Mr. Pendell seconded. Motionrizat 2-0.

In reviewing the list, it was agreed to continueaonas needed on call for staffing coverage ofithe
station. Mr. Warren added between he & Matt (Ga)lahey are handling everything and checking phone
calls daily. Mr. Warren added he is fine with thaywhey are doing it. They check calls twice a dd.
Poelaert recommended not changing anything rigist no

It was agreed to authorize them to purchase twoSE®BA’s, instead of the five as originally planned.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes November 9, 2009 — 20091109selpubmin 2



In discussing phasing out the old forestry trutkyas determined they would wait for resolution witlee
Fire Chief comes back. The Board members requéséellire Dept. not put up any vehicles for salthist
time.

In response to an inquiry about bids for a new¢anlr. Warren informed the Board they receiveddsb
Mr. Poelaert informed them they need to provideSkkectmen'’s office with the original bids, andtttiey
should have been opened by the Board of Selectmen.

Mr. Warren responded he would provide the bidh&odffice. Mr. Poelaert explained the bid processl
noted it must be done properly.

Mr. Warren stated only 3 responded with bids, d&y imet individually with each of them. He hastiad
documentation and will provide the information he tSelectmen’s Office.

Mr. Warren stated they will be placing an orderrieeded supplies, and the Board of Selectmen apgrov

Mr. Warren informed the Board of Selectmen the EKfa& agreed to cover the cost of approximately
$1,000 to purchase an air compressor for the 8padment.

He further noted the kitchen is being renovatedh \EiKFA funds and they, at this time, have decidetto
cover the cost to upgrade the electric panel frOrap to 100-amp. Mr. Warren added he has receined
estimate of $1,800 from Thompson Electric, and la@oguote of $2,800 to perform the work. He is agki
if the Board would approve the expenditure to ugdgréne panel, while the electrician is working ba t
kitchen area. It would solve a lot of issues. Hals® recommending the manual switch be changad to
auto switch.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to expend up to $2,800 to upgrade the emergencydie¢he bay side of the fire
station to increase to a 100-amp panel with an tatsfer switch, as recommended. Mr. Poelaertrekemh
Motion carried 2-0.

Matthew Dworman joined the meeting.

Mr. Warren informed the Board they hope to becohgtbde to apply for grants. They think they are
approximately 6 months away from becoming eligible.

Mr. Warren inquired about a request to withdrawdsifrom the newly created Ambulance Revolving Fund
to repair the ambulance. He noted McFarland Fosdghgen an estimate of $4,500 to fix the transrorssit
was noted the ambulance has about 7,000 miles.

After discussion, Mr. PoelaeMOTIONED to release the funds to cover the cost of repaitee
ambulance by McFarland Ford up to $4,500. Mr. Pikséeonded. Motion carried 3-0.

It was again noted, there is no need to make @&sIn getting rid of any vehicles at this time.

Chairman Dworman stated his intention, as stateshiamail, was for the two Captains to share in the
responsibilities as they see fit. Mr. Warren regjsahthings are running fine. They are aware of the
economy, and are watching the budget closely.

In response to an inquiry about the new EOC Coatdin(Sarah Gallant), Matt Gallant informed the Bba
she has met with the former Coordinator Mark Cautk dulia Chase from the State level. She will itave

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes November 9, 2009 — 20091109selpubmin 3



attend two classes. He added the drills will béyazext year, in January and March, with the graded
exercise in May.

Unitil is conducting a seminar in December, and Warren acknowledged that he and Matt would attend.

Mr. Warren further noted acknowledgement of a meegmesting a report from the fire department fer th
Town Report, and they agreed to provide the Selea®Office with a report.

Mr. Warren stated they have access to the compatkthe medical closet in dispatch.

Mr. Warren added the operation of the departmentriaing smoothly. They will continue to keep theatd
members informed, but don’t feel they need to reporthe day-to-day operations. They will contitoe

keep the services up, perform inspections, and enalivmedical calls. Ed being the Vice Chair & th
Planning Board has asked Matt to attend the PlgnBoard meetings, and the Board members agreed. Th
Adm. Asst. was asked to let the Planning Board&ary know, and she agreed to inform the Secretary.

ROAD AGENT: Mr. Poelaert inquired about the salt shed bactagcuto Road Agent Matt Gallant. Mr.
Gallant informed the Board the curtain failed kgsar. Mr. Poelaert asked if it was under warraabg Mr.
Gallant responded no, it was not covered.

Mr. Gallant noted the sand & salt were not covdoeall those years when stored at Rossi’s. Heagxgd
what happened to the back flap. He is looking imt@t can be done.

Matt Gallant left the meeting at 7:30PM.
SOLID WASTE: Solid Waste member Duncan MacLeod met with ther@t@present the final

recommendation of the Solid Waste Committee favlia svaste and recycling contract. The current @it
with Waste Management expires 12/31/09.

It was noted several bids were received and rexdewasd it is the committee’s recommendation to i@t
with Waste Management.

Mr. MacLeod reviewed the contract negotiated, d@ddommittee’s report dated 09/29/09 with the Board

It was noted the committee got the answers to ti@stipns raised by both the Board members and the
public, and it is still recommended to have evaheoweek recycling vs. weekly, along with weeldyic
waste pick up.

It was noted the contract is based on 810 homdstwite a year bulk pick up, and includes all felderly
housing communities.

The committee is recommending 96-gallon barrelsdoycling, and 64-gallon barrels for solid wadtevas
noted every week recycling would be an additiomast ©f $20,000 per year.

The current 96-gallon green barrel, effective 4012, will become the recycling, and a new 64-galalh
be delivered for solid waste.

Mr. MacLeod noted implementation of the program iddaegin one month from the date the contract is
signed. If you sign it tonight, the reduced cosil vegin with December 2009. He added it wouldsbegle
stream recycling.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes November 9, 2009 — 20091109selpubmin 4



Mr. MacLeod further explained the week of 12/28(0®n.), is an off week for recycling, but due t@th
Christmas Holiday; the committee has negotiateddatitional pick up week at a cost of $800. He aking
for the Board to approve the additional expendifarg¢he additional pick up. Mr. Poelaert notedttivauld
be $1.00 per household for the additional pickampttie Christmas holiday.

Mr. MacLeod noted it will stay the way it is unfipril 2010, and between now and then, they will cada
the residents.

Mr. MacLeod again stated if they sign the conttanight, the cost reduction would begin with 2/1
(instead of 1/1/2010).

He acknowledged the 64-gallon totes won't be inl dxgril 2010, and he is fine with that, as theyedehe
time to educate the residents. Mr. MacLeod stdteccommittee members would like to keep the cotemit
“in force.” They plan to meet once a week to workeducating the residents.

Discussion ensued regarding additional barrelsomfieone needs an additional recycle barrel, itoogt
$70 for the barrel. If they need an additionalhirbarrel, it will cost $200 per year. Mr. PendsHted you
are penalizing the people who can’t put it allhe 64-gallon trash bucket if they have big families

Mr. MacLeod stated the committee voted unanimotisly the barrel fee only would be for solid wasiat,
for recycling.

Mr. Pendell noted he knows about an email goingradowvith about 50 families that are upset about the
change in the barrels from 96-gallon to 64 fordelaste.

Chairman Dworman noted he thinks it would be bdtidrave weekly recycling vs. every other week.
Mr. Warren stated he appreciates all the work trmaroittee has done, but gave an example of his {Gfks
& 84) who refuse to participate in recycling. Wotihety have an option to buy an additional barrdi@ T

response was yes, so he added he has no problarthe/iprogram.

Mr. MacLeod added there is an addendum page indheact that addresses the option to switch tckiyee
recycling.

Chairman Dworman added he thinks you would elingrzatot of the issues if you go to weekly recycling
Mr. MacLeod stated his research shows that heratibmmends every other week recycling. It wasadote
they can switch it if need be, but encouraged tteetry it first, and change it only if found to becessary.

Mr. MacLeod stated the single stream recyclingsth?2/1/09, if they sign the contract tonight.

It was again noted, effective 4/1/2010; the 64eagalbarrel will be used for trash, and the 96-gabarrel for
recycling. Waste Management will place the ordettie 64-gallon barrels and deliver them to thélesgs.

R. Scott Urwick joined the meeting at 8:00PM.
The Board of Selectmen continued to review thereabhtand the addendum.

Chairman Dworman acknowledged receipt of bids filaste Management, Best Way Disposal Services,
and Northside Carting, along with Pinard Waste Besy Casella, Inc., & Concord Regional Co-op.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes November 9, 2009 — 20091109selpubmin 5



Chairman DwormaMOTIONED to award the bid to Waste Management, based oretteenmendation of
the Solid Waste & Recycling Committee. Mr. Poelaextonded. Motion carried 3-0.

Chairman Dworman stated he wants to review theraontvith Waste Management prior to signing it.

Mr. Pendell stated he has a problem with the féésthinks you are discriminating against largeifes
Mr. Poelaert stated if you make it too easy toageecond barrel, the cost would go up.

Mr. Urwick inquired about the cost. He was told $@bthe barrel plus an additional monthly fee ttodials
about $120.00 per year, for a grand total to begdthof $200 per year. However, there would be no
additional fee for additional recycling barrels.

Mr. Urwick stated he would expect that there wdaddweeks that he would need a second trash banekl,
other weeks that he would not. He questioned haimgy for the weeks that he would not use fle 2
barrel.

Mr. MacLeod stated they need to educate peopladowrage them to recycle.

Again, it was noted the 96-gallon barrel will bedgor recycling, there will be no additional cémtthe 2
barrel, and with the 64-gallon barrel for solid teathere would be an additional fee of $70 forliheel,
and $120 for the total monthly fee, rounded = $@60year to be billed to the homeowner.

The cost is for trash, not for recycling, so thep to recycle more and reduce the tonnage lad sa@ste,
to be cost effective.

Mr. Urwick stated he has no problem with payingtfex weeks he would use it, but on the weeks herdpe
he does. He felt it wasn’t equitable.

Mr. Urwick and Mr. Warren left the meeting.

Mr. PoelaerMOTIONED to approve the expenditure of $800 for the spexiditional recycle pick up on
Mon., 12/28/09. Mr. Pendell seconded. Motion carBe0.

Mr. Poelaert suggested the information be placethenvebsite, put the lighted sign out at the fiede and
post it.

Mr. MacLeod added the contract includes twice a pedk pick up (May & Oct.), and a white goods pigk
with a $35 sticker fee to be paid by the resident.

Chairman DwormaMOTIONED to review and sign the contract with Waste Manag@nsontingent upon
a final review. It was noted the Board members @aign it by the end of the week.

Discussion ensued regarding the implementatioh@®¥ barrel billing. It was noted the TC/TC office
could bill the residents from the list Waste mamaget can provide, when they issue the propertyiiéss
twice a year.

Mr. MacLeod acknowledged the original bids wouldpbevided to the Selectmen’s Office. Mr. MacLeod
will be notified when the contract is signed. TheaBl members agreed to a blue 64-gallon barrel.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes November 9, 2009 — 20091109selpubmin 6



Chairman Dworman thanked Mr. MacLeod on behalhef¢committee for all their time and effort, and Mr.
MacLeod left the meeting at 8:30PM.

Chairman Dworman again stated he would recommemtkiyweecycling.

BUDGET: The Board acknowledged receipt of the 2010 praphbselget in the amount of $2,575,000, and
the default budget at $2,557,000.

It was noted the 2009 default budget was $2,496 &dl@cting an increase of $78,200 for the 2010de,
or 3%. It was further noted the $78,200 increaskides $40,000 for additional bond payments, argjZE®
for contractual items.

After review, Chairman DwormadOTIONED to approve the 2010 budget at $2,575,000, anddfault
budget at $2,557,000. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Matoried 3-0.

Mr. Pendell stated at the recent School Board megghie was asked if the Selectmen would be intedlaat
marketing the budget, along with the school boardget. Chairman Dworman responded he was not in
favor of doing it. The people will vote in March 2D

Mr. Poelaert and Mr. Dworman agreed if Mr. Pendelhted to do so, he could go.

POLICE DEPT.: The Adm. Asst. informed the Board the Police Chigf be taking some vacation time,
and Sgt. Ray Marquis will be in charge during Hisence.

The Board acknowledged a letter dated 11/03/09 franPolice Chief requesting approval to expen@G3,
from the police department budget to purchase argéor for the police station. The letter notedviagy be
receiving a donation of $5,000 to cover the totatof $7,900. It was noted the police statiorusthdave a
generator. During the ice storm of Dec. 2008, taéan had no power.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve the expenditure of up to $3,500 frompiblece department budget to
purchase a generator for the police station, cgatihupon receiving the donation of $5,000. Chairma
Dworman seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

NONPUBLIC SESSION: Chairman DwormaMOTIONED to go into a nonpublic session at 8:45PM
under RSA 91-A-3, Il: para. (b) The hiring of angrpon as a public employdére Board was polled & the
results of the poll were: Matthew B. Dworman-Yegard S. Poelaert-Yes, & David R. Pendell, Jr.=Yes

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s non-public meetin§:46PM. Mr. Pendell
seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

MINUTES: The Adm. Asst. informed the Board members thededlihief asked that it be noted on page 3
of the 10/13/2009 Selectmen’s meeting minutegates he had recommended the increase from $8.00 to
$10.00 for the administration fee and vehicle farepblice special details, and that it was Chairman
Dworman who recommended the increase, not himBda@d members agreed it was Chairman Dworman
and not the Police Chief who recommended the iserea

RESIGNATION: The Board acknowledged receipt of a letter ofgreaiion dated 10/23/09 from Sue St.
Martin from the Historical Committee effective 12010. The Board accepted it with regret.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes November 9, 2009 — 20091109selpubmin 7



MEMO: It was noted a memo has been forwarded to all Taanmittees to remind them that they are to
provide the Board of Selectmen with minutes ofrtheeetings upon approval of them. It was noted that
some committees have been providing them on aaebakis, and others have not.

WARRANT: The Board was provided with the first draft of tharrant for their review. They reviewed the
warrant articles, making changes, additions, atetides.

It was noted when the Police Chief discussed aamaarticle for 2010 for an additional full timefiger, the
cost would be $57,000. The Adm. Asst. noted with2010 rates, an adjustment would reflect the wéarra
article to be $60,250. After discussion, the Baafr@electmen agreed to remove it from the 2010 avédyr
based on the current economy.

Mr. Pendell suggested buying a tanker for the Bept. at the end of 2010 with surplus money nohgpe
all the departments scrimped and saved.

The Admin. Asst. interjected that the Town is cothgoperating on a default budget, and there ianit
extra money to cover costs like that.

Mr. Pendell informed the Board members the Friesfdbe Library have taken down the sign at thesalifpy
which will be replaced with a new sign. The Friemdsuld like to revamp the old sign. Peter Datilksh
offered to re-letter it Pound School Meeting Hows®] add a message board to it.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED for the Board of Selectmen to accept the donaifdhe sign from the Friends of
the Library for the Pound School. Mr. Poelaert selgal. Motion carried 3-0.

NONPUBLIC SESSION: Chairman DwormaMOTIONED to go into a nonpublic session at 9:15PM
under RSA 91-A-3, Il: para (c.) Matters, which ifcussed in public, would likely affect adverseig t
reputation of any person, other than a membereobtidy or agency itself, unless such person regaest
open meeting. The Board was polled and the resfittse poll were: Matthew B. Dworman — Yes, Richar
S. Poelaert — Yes, & David R. Pendell, Jr. - Yes.

The Board was polled & determined the divulgencthefinformation would render the proposed action
ineffective & the information will be withheld froie public during the public meeting Minutes of
November 09, 2009. The results of the poll werettMav B. Dworman —Yes, Richard S. Poelaert-Yes, &
David R. Pendell, Jr. - Yes.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s non-public meetin§:380PM. Mr. Pendell
seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s public meeting at 2180 Mr. Pendell seconded.
Motion carried 3-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Deborah G. Gallant
Administrative Assistant

Matthew B. Dworman Richard S. Poelaert DaRi Pendell, Jr.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes November 9, 2009 — 20091109selpubmin 8



Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes November 9, 2009 — 20091109selpubmin 9



